CITY OF LEAVENWORTH
PLANNING COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N. 5t Street
Leavenworth, KS 66048

REGULAR SESSION
Monday, October 6, 2025
6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER:
1. Roll Call/Establish Quorum

2. Approval of Minutes: September 8, 2025

OLD BUSINESS:

None

NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2025-16 SUP — 1512 S 2NP STREET.

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2025-16 SUP — 1512 S 2" St., wherein the applicant is
requesting a Special Use Permit to allow car sales in the I-1 (Light Industrial District) zoning district.

2. 2025-17 SUP - 813 KICKAPOO STREET.

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2025-17 SUP — 813 Kickapoo St., wherein the applicant is
requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a home occupation that is not conducted entirely within the
principal residential dwelling in the R1-6 (High Density Single Family Residential District) zoning

district.

OTHER BUSINESS:

1. Sherry Hanson - attendance vote

A vote to determine if the City Commission should be petitioned to replace Planning Commissioner
Sherry Hanson due to lack of attendance at scheduled Planning Commission meetings.

ADJOURN




PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
2025-16 SUP
1512 S 2NP STREET

OCTOBER 6, 2025
SUBJECT:
A request for a Special Use Permit to allow Automobile Sales in the I-1, Light Industrial District.

@
Prepared By: Reviewed By:
Michelle Baragary, Kim Portillo, AICP
City Planner Planning & CD Director
NATURE OF REQUEST

The applicant, Cedric Baker, is requesting a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow automobile sales on a property
located at 1512 S 2" Street. Automobile sales are an allowed use in the I-1, Light Industrial District, with the
approval of a Special Use Permit (SUP).

The property is the old aluminum recycling center. It is bordered by industrial and commercial uses: a storage
facility is located to the north and west, Geiger Ready Mix and Drexel Chemical Company are to the east, and the
former Abeles Field and a vacant City-owned lot are located to the south.

Per Table 5-01 of the adopted Development Regulations, the required parking rate for automobile sales is
calculated as: 1 per 400 SF of publicly accessible building area, plus 1 per 3,000 SF of sales lot, plus 1 space per
employee.

Based on the applicant’s submitted data, the required parking is calculated as follows:

Component Calculation Required Spaces
Building Access 144 SF / 400 SF = 0.36 1
Sales Lot 10,000 SF / 3,000 SF = 3.33 4
Employees 2 Employees 2
TOTAL 7

The applicant has submitted a parking lot site plan for 9 total parking stalls, which exceeds the minimum
requirement. The proposed spaces are as follows:

e East: 5 parking spaces for employee and customer parking.
e North: 4 parking spaces designated for inventory.
e South: A dedicated storage/overflow area.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




COMMISSION FINDINGS
The Commission may recommend issuance of a special use permit whenever it finds that:
1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

Staff believes that this application complies with all provisions of the City of Leavenworth Development
Regulations.

2. The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

The proposed special use to allow automobile sales will contribute to the economic vitality of Leavenworth
by allowing for the operation of a revenue generating business in the space.

3. The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood in
which it is located.

Staff does not believe that the proposed use will cause substantial injury to the value of other property in
the neighborhood.

4. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or conducted
in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it are such that
the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent development and use of
neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations.

No new structures or buildings are proposed, and the parking site plan provides ample off-street parking.
The applicant originally purchased the property for Heavy Vehicle Sales (commercial vehicles with a GVYW
of over 10,000 Ibs), a use permitted by-right in the I-1 district. The proposed automobile sales operation
is considered less intense than the permitted use, and therefore, will not dominate the neighborhood.

Notification was sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property, as required by Kansas statute. After
notifications were mailed, staff has received no comments or inquiries.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings included herein,
subject to the following conditions:

1. The Special Use Permit shall be renewed annually through the City Clerk’s Office.

Failure to maintain compliance with all conditions shall result in revocation of the Special Use Permit.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

e Motion, based upon findings as stated and conditions as presented, to recommend approval to the City
Commission with included conditions.

e Motion, to recommend denial to the City Commission.

e Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




1512 S 2nd Street (SUP)

10/2/2025, 6:06:11 PM 1:2,257
0 001 003 0.05 mi

Override 1 Address (Points) RoadCenterline ey
- e 0 0.02 0.04 0.09 km

Parcels (City Owned) lww=ud Leavenworth City Limits Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user

community

L Parcels_Current City Right-of-Way Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

Platte County, Missouri Dept. of Conservation, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnolegies, Inc., USGS, EPA |




1512 S 2nd Street - Zoning

&S SN *
A .

10/2/2025, 6:07:57 PM 1:2,257
; ey 0 0.01 0.03 0.05 mi
= Override 1 NI |.1 Parcels (City Owned) i=....i Leavenworth City Limits e
. LT 0 002 004 0.09 km
’Zonlng_CURRENT - -2 I: Parcels_Current ~ City Right-of-Way Esii, HERE, Garmin, () OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
m GBD s . community
R1-6 Address (Points) RoadCenterline Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
Platte County. Missouri Dept. of Conservation, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA|




OFFICE USE ONLY

)

CASE NO.: lUZD ~ iz SUP
Application No. ,/J{ 1 .J/—[
Fee (non-refundable) $350.00
SPECIAL USE PERMIT Filing Date B 10| 2035
CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS Receipted By
Hearing Date 0| g | 2035
Publication Date Al 1ol d0a5

As provided in Section 2.04 of the 2016 Development Regulations, application is hereby made for a
SPECIAL USE PERMIT for the operation of a: _ {1 vy \Ai \ ¢ e L

in accordance with the attached site plan on the following described property:

Subject Property: \‘%\}\ <\_, Al K \\L\ A0V (A \(\ [ (ol \\\
_Legal Description: (Attach a full legal description provided by the Register of Deeds Oﬁ' ice)
Real Estate PID # 05)-6000- B0 4O ~ 10 - 003, O] —&

Zoning: 1- L Historic District:

I/We, the undersigned, depose and state we are the owners of the above described property:

y Name(s) of Owner (print): Cp (L‘ 1 P"UJLJL (

!Owner Address: | |9\ A '3 fl\nf\ I \tode iy 0" A '\’ & \,QLQ_C‘KX
_Contact No. 135 592 U‘\u@\ Email: I \YL\ b A SO \m-\\\\\\‘ Qo0

Goby Pokrz—"_ - |

- Signature of Owner(s):

5 State of K(I\\S‘~Y ) JILL MONROE
i County of __|_@iU) (A ) SEAL) :';WE‘\‘;‘;“""ET")‘I’?;S' Sifagi%’g‘ﬁs |
: Signed or attested before me on: &\x (H AN L A r:) ‘

[ - ¢ |
' Notary Public: . \\ Menp o ()
My Appointment Expires: T ap= tag!

| If business is operated by somecne other than the owner, provide name and address of operator(s).

Name of Lessee: [
Address:

| Contact No. Email:
' NOTE: All signatures must be in ink. Signature of owner(s) must be secured and notarized.

E Check list below...

Non-Refundable Fee of $350.00 is due at time of application

| v | Certified list of property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the subject property

v | Attach full legal description obtained through the Register of Deeds Office

.~ Site Plan drawn to scale (See General Instructions)

| v Supporting documentation (See General Instructions) |

Planning Commission 3 SUP Application Rev. 720



\olZ[Zg

Dear Planning Department,

On behalf of Back Endz Wholesale LLC, we respectfully request a Special Use Permit for
1512 S 2nd Street, Leavenworth, Kansas, to operate a small-scale used car dealership
offering retail sales to the public.

Site Overview:
e Parking:
East: 5 parking spaces for employees and customer parking.
North: 4 parking spaces for designated inventory.
South: A dedicated storage/overflow area.

o Access: Direct entrance from S 2nd Street with a designated delivery entrance on
the south side.

¢ Deliveries: Vehicles will be delivered in a low-impact manner—primarily driven or
transported via dolly by the owner. No large transport trucks or high-volume
deliveries.

This proposed use supports the City’s goals for responsible land use and economic
development. We are committed to maintaining a clean, organized site and being
respectful neighbors.

Thank you for your consideration. We welcome the opportunity to discuss further and
provide any additional documentation as needed.



I\ \o[ 2|25
1512 S 2nd Street g { !

S R
L\

2

F

k

10/1/2025, 1:38:33 PM

1:564
semmeeny . L. 0 0 0.01 0.01 mi
Parcels (City Owned) l=u=.d Leavenworth City Limits e el
0 001 001 0.02 km
[ ] Parcels_Current City Right-of-Way
______ 25 BU”dlngS RoadCenterllne Esni, HF.iI‘QE. Garmin, (¢) OpanStraatMap contritetars, and tha GIR usar
community
Address (Points)

‘ Web AppBuildar for ArcGIS
Platte Countv. Missouri Deot. of Conservation. Esri. HERE. Gamin. GeoTechnolodies. Inc.. USGS. EPAL

[ p—



Al dhetes kalen o125







PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
2025-17 SUP
813 KICKAPOO

OCTOBER 6, 2025
SUBIJECT:
A request for a Special Use Permit to allow a home occupation that is not conducted entirely within the principal
dwelling in the R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential District, zoning district.

(A@A%OJA ©
Prepared By: Reviewed By:
Michelle Baragary, Kim Portillo, AICP

City Planner Planning & CD Director

NATURE OF REQUEST

The applicant, Katrina Morgan, is requesting a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow a home occupation that is not
conducted entirely within the principal dwelling unit. The subject property is zoned R1-6, High Density Single
Family Residential District, with an existing single-family home on the lot. The subject property is surrounded by
other single-family homes of a similar size and nature.

The applicant’s proposed use requires an SUP because the essential components of the home occupation will
occur outside of the principal dwelling.

Section 4.04.B.6(g) of the adopted Development Regulations mandates that a home occupation be conducted
entirely within the principal residential building unless a Special Use Permit (SUP) is issued.

The applicant is proposing to use the combined lot for the exterior cultivation of cut flowers. This operation
involves transplanting seedlings into six designated in-ground flower beds from February to October annually.
Sales will occur off-site at local Farmers Markets and online.

Staff confirms that the accessory use (the flower cultivation) will be located on the same lot as the principal
residence, satisfying the requirements of Section 4.04.B.2(d), which states that “Accessory Uses are a structure or
use which is located on the same lot as the principal building or principal use served”.

The applicant initially owned two adjacent lots: the primary residence at 813 Kickapoo and the vacant lot to the
east, 811 Kickapoo. On August 20, 2025, the applicant submitted an application to combine these two lots into a
single parcel, with the final address as 813 Kickapoo. The Certificate of Survey for the lot combination has since
been recorded with the Register of Deeds, and two recorded copies have been submitted to staff, ensuring the
accessory use is located on the same lot as the principal residence.

COMMISSION FINDINGS
The Commission may recommend issuance of a special use permit whenever it finds that:

1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




The Certificate of Survey for the lot combination has been recorded, and two copies have been provided to
staff. Staff confirms there is ample room for parking off the rear alley, and staff is currently working with
the applicant on the submitted off-street site plan review.

2. The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

Staff believes that cultivating cut flowers in a residential setting can promote economic development
through local sales, enhance public welfare by providing beauty in the neighborhood, and increase
convenience by offering readily available, fresh local blooms.

3. The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood in
which it is located.

The cut flowers will be cultivated using in-ground flower beds that shall be well maintained, and are
located 21’ from the front property line. A home occupation requires two off-street parking spaces to
prevent use of public on-street parking. Staff does not believe that the operation of a small-scale flower
business will cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood.

4. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or conducted
in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it are such that
the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent development and use of
neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations.

No new structures or buildings are proposed as part of this special use permit. The operation is a small-
scale, home-based flower business. The in-ground beds are located 41’ from the street, minimizing
visibility and impact. The property will continue to function as a residential structure.

Notification was sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property, as required by Kansas statute. After
notifications were mailed, staff has received no comments or inquiries.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings included herein,
subject to the following conditions:

1. The Special Use Permit shall be renewed annually through the City Clerk’s Office.

Failure to maintain compliance with all conditions shall result in revocation of the Special Use Permit.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

e Motion, based upon findings as stated and conditions as presented, to recommend approval to the City
Commission with included conditions.

¢ Motion, to recommend denial to the City Commission.

e Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




813 Kickapoo

- &

9/30/2025, 11:59:17 AM

Override 1 Address (Points) RoadCenterline
o Parcels_Current el Leavenworth City Limits
Buildings City Right-of-Way

1:1,128
0.01 0.02 mi
s )iy

L L 1
T T T T 1

0.02 0.04 km
Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community

0 0.01
} R
0

0.01

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
Platte County, Missouri Dept. of Conservation, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA|



813 Kickapoo - Zoning Map

AR

g OO
"Q\w.\\\‘\x ~ g
9/30/2025, 12:03:18 PM 1:1,128 _
X . RENT [ — . L 0 001 001 0.02 mi
Lines Zoning_CUR Parcels_Current iw..-.i Leavenworth City Limits =t
; 4 ‘ : 0 001  0.02 0.04 km
Override 1 /A’j R-MF | BUlldlngS Clty Righl—of—Way Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
. community
Override 2 R1-6 Address (Points) RoadCenterline Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

Platte County, Missouri Dept. of Conservation, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA|



OFFICE USE ONLY

CASENO.. 025~ |7 SUP
Application No. l /"lf_tol——l

Fee (non-refundable) $350.00

SPEClAL USE PERMIT Filing Date
CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS Receipted By

Hearing Date

U Publication Dale o —
As provided in Section 2.04 of the 2016 Develorment Regulations, appiscahon is hereby made fora |
SPECIAL USE PERMIT for the operation of a; flower growing to resale off property and online.

| in accordance w:th the attached site plan on the followmg descnbed propert
‘Subject Property: 811 and 813 Kickapoo, will be covmbmed to one lot

, ]
_ Legal Description: (Attach a full legal description provided by the Register of Deeds Office) |
| Real Estate PID #: 0772604208002000 and 0772604208003000

Zoning: R1-6 Historic District: | EWING ROELOFSON & CO.

| IWe, the undersigned, depose and state we are the owners of the above described property:
Name(s) of Owner (print): lKDSWOﬂdWIde LLC
Owner Address: 2402 Windmill Drive, Platte City, MO. 64079 -

| Contact No. |805 -340-0675 Watrmqa e. morgan@gmatl com

/ |
D TULIEA. HAGAN |

MU
NOTARY PUBLIC

2 AT TEOﬁKANf?a
r Nty OF l—LUC cmm( Eﬂﬁ\ bpl. Exp - o

| Signed or attested-before me on: 8 (Lfi_ g

l | Notary P PubliC'/ |
vly Appointment Expifes: [/ /,g; fbdy i ‘i
lf business is operated by someone other than the owner, provide name and address of operator(s).

f
|
: Signature of Owner(s):.

Slate of | <
| (,ounty of LE€GYeny “M )

{ Name of Lessee: ll\l_ot applicable. B ) '
ik GO R ‘

| Address. | P ) o ) S S
' Contact No. t | Email: | B o

{
[ NOTE: All blgnalures must be in ink. Signature of owner(s) must be secured and nolarized. 5

Check list below...
Non-Refundable Fee of $350 00 is due at time of application

b=

|
l

} Certified list of property owners within two hundred ( 200) feet of the subject properly

i Atgapr] full legal description obtained through the Register of Deeds Office

| Site Plan drawn to scale (See General Instructions)

NN \II\J

l Supporting documentation (See General Instructions)

Special Use Permit July 2020



Katrina E. Morgan

2402 Windmill Drive

Platte City, Missouri, 64079
805-340-0675
katrina.e.morgan@gmail.com

August 20, 2025

City of Leavenworth Kansas Zoning and Planning Department
100 N. 5th Street, Suite #201
Leavenworth, Kansas, 66048

Subiject: Letter of Intent for Special Use Permit Application of Lots at 811 and
813 Kickapoo Street

To Whom It May Concern,

I am writing to formally express my intent regarding the properties commonly
known as 811 and 813 Kickapoo Street, which | plan to combine via a Lot
Combination Application submitted August 20, 2025, Application No: 17803.

This letter outlines my proposed use of the combined parcels for the
cultivation of cut flowers.

The intended use involves establishing a flower-growing operation on the
combined lots, with the primary activity occurring from February through
October each year. Seedlings will be started off-site and transplanted onto the
property after the last frost, approximately mid-March, at 811 Kickapoo. The
flowers will be cultivated in six designated flower beds, each measuring 7.5
feet wide by 24 feet long. The beds will be arranged with 3 feet of space
between each bed in the north-south direction and 5 feet between beds
east-west, ensuring proper access and growth conditions. The flowers will be
grown in these designated beds and subsequently sold off-site at local
farmers' markets and through online channels.



The placement of the flower beds will adhere to the following setbacks from
the property lines of 811 Kickapoo:

- 4 feet from the western property line

- 21 feet from the northern property line

- 7 feet from the eastern property line

- 31 feet from the southern property line

- 10 feet from the residence at 813 Kickapoo

Please see attached site plan, drawn to scale. Please note that the grid
boxes and lines represent 1 square foot each.

| look forward to working with the City of Leavenworth to facilitate this project
and appreciate your consideration of my proposal.

Please feel free to contact me at 805-340-0675 or
katrina.e.morgan@gmail.com with any questions.

Thank you for your time and attention in this matter.

Very Respectfully,

Katrina E. Morgan
Registered Agent
KDSWorldwide, LLC



[— .Y VIR ) e

1
1301/39.6m

&80
NGO
5%

23

agot

23 ,
o 4M. . o

1




Section/ Plant/Flower Max Height Notes

Bed

Number

4 Snapdragon 1-3 ft

5 Snow Pea 3-6 ft Will harvest

Flowers before reaching

4 ft

5 Yarrow 1-3 ft

5 Statice 1-3 ft

6 Hollyhock 4-8 ft Will harvest
before reaching
6 ft

1 Lisianthus 1-2 ft

1 Craspedia 2-4 ft

1 Coneflower 24 1t

1 Bupleurum 2-3ft




Section/ Plant/Flower Max Height Notes
Bed
Number
2 Amaranthus 3-6 ft Will harvest at
6 ft
2 Celosia 1-3 ft
2 Black-eyed 1-3 ft
Susarn
2 Baby's Breath 1-3 ft
6 Red Leaf 3-8 ft Will harvest
Hibiscus before reaching
6 ft
6 Sage 1-3 ft
6 Dill 34 ft
6 Basil 1-3 ft
6 Thyme S5-11t
6 Oregano 1-2 ft




Section/ Plant/Flower Max Height Notes

Bed

Number

1 Zinnia 1-3 ft

1 Cosmos 3-6 ft Will harvest
before reaching
4 ft

6 Sunflower 3-12 ft Will harvest
before reaching
6 ft

2 Delphinium 3-6 ft Will harvest
before reaching
4 ft

2 Larkspur 24 ft

3 Dahlia 2-6 ft Will harvest

before reaching
4 ft




Ao L6 dnavos nken \oft |25

B N S —










813 & 811 Kickapoo

8/12/2025, 10:55:29 AM

1:564
e 1 P 0 0 0.01 0.01 mi
I__-—| Parcels_Current l=us=:d Leavenworth City Limits —
0 0.01  0.01 0.02 km
Buildings City Right-of-Way
Address (Points) RoadCenterline

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
Platte County, Missouri Dept. of Conservation, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeaTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA |



CERTIFICATE of SURVEY
LOT COMBINATION

ALL OF LOTS 10 AND 11, BLOCK 13
EWING, ROELOFSON & COMPANY

CITY OF LEAVENWORTI
LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS

LU

175 24° REBAR SET WiTw 81349 CA8
SURVEY VONLMENT FONNG (AS HOTED)

BEER DESCRIPTION - DOC, 202IR8135
L0 16, 8.00K G, (e AXLOFECH § XT3, A NIDVRON S/ D6 O1Y OF LCWTIMORTH
LSNGMORTM COUNTY, Kias3

DEER DESCAIPTION - DOC 20I9RIRSLS
LOTREVIRLTL WILOGE MATEE (13; 4 EWIEG AR/ T0M ANO COMPANY SIDMION
WD T OF LLAVLNTORS EWIAR

OB B3 m
TV LTy 13,00
Ads

SURVEVORS DESCRIPTION
o ORGI LOKNOWY UNESS RTFLRENCLD AL OF LOTS 13 M0 t1, BLOCK ¥, CAINVG. ACLLOION AND (ORPAKY CTT OF LERVDIWOR™M, LMGAS,
™  mart asi LAY T s 73 130k MY, S358 SR ALY DEKABED Ad PRLOWE.
CLOREIG AT I AORTUAS1 COBLA
AQ MRASURID DENCE SETFICE, 12800 FOET ALORC TWE EAST LM OF L0 X 1O FUE SOL™EAS™ CIRMER OF SAD LOT 10,
P ATTIDAND VEASRED e Serawy a.mn«nummvwmvmumuwm
< 2 -3 OB FOKT OF PLOIWG mmnmmu U OF L0 41 7O ME NORTMMEST CORMCE OF SAD L0 11
a oo P NP o oA 08 5 L7 100 70 W P 28 O
Cl—— e iy
CAE T SFIATVE. 1061200
BAGS OF MARMGS
AN HOK Y FONE - AT
€L KICKAPOO SIREET (8L SRTIFICATE
5 3 0 1O CORTIY THAT PR ACKRIOMET G TV OWMR OF N CEICRECD N THE AT OF SUEY SAD AL PROAA S,
TAKTY HAVE SED PAD MO PAT "IV WAVE CACSID T SAME 10 8 SO MO AY MOCATED DERON
mmww:mnnmmumm A0 300N DE LA LICER ™E STRE AAD
Ao srgne S e < [ T TN P
PR T Y) f o DA - weas
zon » mmnmv«%ﬂvu%%
e o) —=
TP uTw A ,{W%
ELd £ h T ©a ue v ! £ s
i . - rosyy iy
P @i
H !
X i BN
| 0 T LML T8 CXFORE ME. AMDLARY PUERIC N ANO FOR $AD
COMNTY MO STATT A PERSON WO [XEELTTO T FORE SOMG TR AT
i NG DAY RO 30 T FXECUTCCF i A AV KRS BT Ko AN L0 4 O o
| THE DAY MO YIAR KBOVE ARTTTS.
i
i :
! 5 lucieon
3 NAicon O Tehnsrn
' |
i g ti o s © 9w B s £ " H
¢ € ¢ ” t I £ 8| - H
£ B ] E, 5 B PLANNING APPROVAL
1 THS o + 131 ECA
\ < ‘3 ms,it,uvwm(
; 10¢ Ch B
! BRCTOR Y P . CORmR 3 AT
1 wREuo
i
; H
! LEAVENIWORYIL COUNTY SURVETOR
] lwﬂ"" VG RA' OF BURRATMLETS PN KLOURDMIA'S O !5&“0‘7‘0’&”\'“‘“
i = e 2o NPT ALXD) O A SN MR FOR B OARY BT K01 €18 4% CATOR S
S— ' e swnwe o d THCH RCVE 13 FOR UITALY O ORIATICN ML
14 WIDE ALLEY U Rl tusss
CERVRIOR T COXUATY Gl YOR
BAVOCK 7 110
me
R UERETY SIGRE FAMLY RLICEATIN, DSTRET
NN 0T I -4 T T, .
IR S0 BT Ww - LG CUMBIVAI M WAL PRI MM wes 2670w o SEVIENPER 1>
25 COMMEA EFTSACK U%II mnmw_
¥ AGAR SITICK.
TTRATRGE SAMART]
L2 HOE £y WORTHAG
: wama mumu
1 e NOT | GASEMCNTS, - "we
200 P BT AR PR ED 04 S ST, . swIrae wow [y asen
3143 AR 1 0 4T WITNUA SPLOIAL FLO0D MAIND HEA TR TR
[ L pets swre “uw 10408 e m-mcummmlruom-umv 30 ey
i wws e R e AT PO 5 I MO RATY
AWBUT an -1 nm
BENCUMARK:
0P OF WAMKXE LD AT ME NORTHEAST CORMER OF LCT 13 A3 SrOW)
2 VIR CLORED! SPOXTS LA 10/CLOSEILO0N,  LNTAR SO0 FLIT DMECTION ¥ETr WY
HORTOMIAL DSTANCE. 31T 00 5LV MORTIONG. 203 FERT UITR SReFUT
AEA TN FT |, CNTACES
N —
LT B00R 14, MAGE 1§ 9958 MU TRIGPCRY ROLNOR, LAXSCS sete?

(1D te3. 308




PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
SHERRY HANSON — ATTENDANCE VOTE

OCTOBER 6TH, 2025
SUBJECT:
A vote to determine if the City Commission should be petitioned to replace Planning Commissioner Sherry Hanson
due to lack of attendance at scheduled Planning Commission meetings.

Prepared By:

Kim Portillo, AICP
Director of Planning and Community Development

NATURE OF REQUEST
Article I, ltem 7 of the Planning Commission by-laws states the following:

“Should a Planning Commission member miss three regular monthly meetings in any 12 month period, the
commission shall determine if the City Commission should be petitioned to replace that Planning Commission
member.”

Planning Commission member Sherry Hanson has exceeded this threshold with absences at the November 2024,
December 2024, February 2025 and September 2025 meetings.

Attendance Record

P=Present = A=Absent /= No meeting held

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025

/ A A / A / / P / / / A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
This item does not have a staff recommendation.

ACTION/OPTIONS:
e Motion, to recommend replacement of the Planning Commissioner to the City Commission.
e Motion, to not make a recommendation of replacement of the Planning Commissioner to the City Commission.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




City of Leavenworth Planning Commission

BYLAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

The following rules and regulations governing the procedures
of the Planning Commission are adopted in accordance with the
planning laws of the State of Kansas.

Article I - Members

1. The membership of the Leavenworth Planning Commission is
determined by Ordinance No. 7078. A majority of the currently duly
appointed Commission shall constitute a quorum.

2. Members shall be appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the
City Commission. Appointments shall be made for three-year terms.
Vacancies shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.
Members of the Board shall be residents of the City of Leavenworth
and serve without compensation.

Article II - Officers

1. The Planning Commission shall organize annually at the first
regular meeting after the annual appointment of members but no later
than the September meeting.

2. The Commission shall elect a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson
from among the appointed members at the annual organization meeting.
The officers shall serve for one year or until replaced.

3. The City Planner shall serve as the Secretary.

4, The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and public
hearings of the Planning Commission; shall decide all points of order
and procedure; shall certify plans and subdivision plats; and shall
transmit reports and recommendations of the Planning Commission to
the governing body with the assistance of the Secretary. The
Chairperson and the Secretary are required to certify plans and
subdivision plats.

5. The Vice-Chairperson shall assume the duties of the Chairperson
in his absence.

6. The Secretary shall be responsible for keeping the minutes of
the Planning Commission; sending agendas to members of the Planning
Commission; carrying out written correspondence; maintaining the
records of the Commission; and performing such other duties as the
Planning Commission may require.



7. Should a Planning Commission member miss three regular monthly
meetings in any 12 month period, the commission shall determine if
the City Commission should be petitioned to replace that Planning
Commission member.

Article III - Meetings

1. The Planning Commission shall meet monthly, on an as needed
basis, on the first Monday of the month at 6:00 p.m. in the Commission
Auditorium, 1lst Floor of City Hall. When the first Monday falls on
a holiday, the meeting shall be held on the second Monday of the month.

2. Special meetings of the Planning Commission may be called by
the Chairperson or, in his absence, by the Vice-Chairperson. Notice
of special meetings shall be given by the Secretary to the members
of the Commission at least three days prior to such meeting and shall
state the purpose and time of the meeting.

3. All regular and special meetings, hearings and records shall
be open to the public.

4. A majority of the Commission shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. If a quorum is not present at a regular or
special meeting, those present may either adjourn the meeting or hold
the meeting to consider such matters as are on the agenda. No action
shall be taken at such a meeting and the Commission shall continue
official action on any agenda items until a subsequent meeting when
a quorum is present.

5. The order of business at all meetings shall be as follows:

a)call to order

b)determination of quorum

c)approval of minutes

d)old business

e)new business and/or public hearing

f)reports of committees

g)reports of commission members and city staff
h)adjournment

6. Motions shall be restated by the Chairperson before a vote is
taken. The name of the maker and supporter of a motion shall be
recorded.



7. An affirmative vote of the members present (when at least a
quorum) is needed to authorize any official action of the Commission
unless otherwise specified by statute.

8. All members of the Commission, including the Chairperson, shall
have a vote when present unless a person shall disqualify him/herself
from voting on any decision in which there might be a conflict of
interest. In the event of a conflict of interest, a member shall so
state before discussion of the item and shall remove him/herself from
the dais.

9. When procedural and parliamentary rules by the Planning
Commission do not conflict, procedure shall be according to "Robert's
Rules of Order."

Article IV - Committees

The Chairperson may appoint any standing committee deemed
necessary for the review and study of Commission business and any
special committee seeking research and recommendations on special
topics. Any committee may contain up to four members of the
Commission.

Article V - Planning Commission Staff

1. The Planning Commission may employ staff and/or professional
consultants as it may require, subject to approved budgetary
limitations.

2. The staff shall conduct business for the Commission and prepare
reports and agendas for the Commission pursuant to law and procedure.

3. The staff shall act as liaison for the Planning Commission to
the City Commission and other boards/commissions and the general
public.

4. The staff shall prepare an annual budget and annual review of
the zoning ordinance and Comprehensive Plan and make recommendations

for modifications.

5. The staff shall accept other responsibilities as may be directed
by the Planning Commission, the Governing Body, or the City Manager.

Article VI - Records and Reports

1. The Commission shall keep a record of its resolutions,
transactions, findings and determinations.

2. All records of the Planning Commission shall be available for



public review.

3. The Commission shall review annually the comprehensive plan and
zoning ordinance to determine if any portion has become obsolete and
shall make a report to the governing body regarding same.

Article VII - Publicity

1. The Planning Commission shall encourage the public to attend its
regular meetings and shall take positive action to keep its
activities before the public by supplying newspapers and other media
with information and by having members and staff appear before civic
groups to discuss the purpose of planning and the work of the Planning
Commission.

Article VIII - Amendments

1. These rules of procedure may be amended by an affirmative vote
by a majority of the Planning Commission members provided such
proposed amendment has been submitted in writing to each member of
the Commission at least three days prior to the meeting at which such
action is to be taken.

Article IX - Rules of Order

Open Public Meetings. All meetings and study sessions shall be
open to the public. A record must be kept of all business transacted.

Public Hearings. The Chairperson may prescribe procedures for
the conduct of public hearings including setting a time limit for
citizen input in order to provide a fair and impartial presentation
of all sides of a request.

Passed and approved this Z+" day of F%ﬁﬁlbuNZh’ , 2022.

Chairperson =L
ATTEST:

Secret y<;//




